
NOTICE OF MEETING

Meeting Executive Member for Recreation and Heritage Decision Day

Date and Time Thursday, 11th July, 2019 at 12.30 pm

Place Chute Room, EII Court, The Castle, Winchester

Enquiries to members.services@hants.gov.uk

John Coughlan CBE
Chief Executive
The Castle, Winchester SO23 8UJ

FILMING AND BROADCAST NOTIFICATION
This meeting may be recorded and broadcast live on the County Council’s website.  
The meeting may also be recorded and broadcast by the press and members of the 
public – please see the Filming Protocol available on the County Council’s website.

AGENDA

1. GRANT FUNDING TO CULTURE AND COMMUNITY 
ORGANISATIONS IN HAMPSHIRE 2019/20  (Pages 3 - 16)

To consider a report of the Director of Culture, Communities and 
Business Services seeking approval to award grant funding to cultural 
and community organisations. 

ABOUT THIS AGENDA:
On request, this agenda can be provided in alternative versions (such as 
large print, Braille or audio) and in alternative languages.

ABOUT THIS MEETING:
The press and public are welcome to attend the public sessions of the 
meeting. If you have any particular requirements, for example if you require 
wheelchair access, please contact members.services@hants.gov.uk for 
assistance.

County Councillors attending as appointed members of this Committee or by 
virtue of Standing Order 18.5; or with the concurrence of the Chairman in 
connection with their duties as members of the Council or as a local County 
Councillor qualify for travelling expenses.

Public Document Pack

mailto:members.services@hants.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



HAMPSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

Decision Report

Decision Maker: Executive Member for Recreation and Heritage

Date: 11 July 2019

Title: Grant Funding to Culture and Community Organisations in 
Hampshire 2019/20

Report From: Director of Culture, Communities and Business Services

Contact name:
Nicola Horsey
Rosellen Lambert

Tel:   
01932 845423
01962 846022

Email:
nicola.horsey@hants.gov.uk 
rosellen.lambert@hants.gov.uk 

Purpose of this Report

1. The purpose of this report is to recommend funding awards to Culture and 
Community organisations in Hampshire that have submitted applications to 
the Recreation and Heritage Community Fund.

2. The Report also provides an update on the financial position of the 
Recreation and Heritage Community Fund.

Recommendations

3. That the Executive Member for Recreation and Heritage approves awards 
from the Recreation and Heritage Community Fund 2019/20 totalling £82,684 
to cultural, recreational and community organisations across Hampshire as 
outlined in Appendix 2.

4. That the Executive Member for Recreation and Heritage approves a grant of 
£9,000 to Pilands Wood Community Association.

Executive Summary 

5. This report seeks approval from the Executive Member for Recreation and 
Heritage for £82,684 of awards to cultural, recreational and community 
organisations across Hampshire.    

Page 3

Agenda Item 1

mailto:nicola.horsey@hants.gov.uk
mailto:rosellen.lambert@hants.gov.uk


6. This report seeks approval from the Executive Member for Recreation and 
Heritage for an award of £9,000 to Pilands Wood Community Association. 

7. This report also provides an update on the financial position of the Recreation 
and Heritage Community Fund.

Contextual Information

Recreation and Heritage Community Fund Grants

8. The purpose of this grant stream is to fund projects which provide community 
benefit and help local communities thrive and/or to help local organisations 
become financially self-supporting and not reliant on public sector funding. In 
addition, small one-off grants from £1,000 to £3,000 will also be awarded to 
help pump-prime community events and activities. Full details, including what 
the County Council can and cannot fund, are set out in Appendix 1.

9. Sixteen organisations have applied for funding and the details are set out in 
Appendix 2.

Pilands Wood Community Association - Investment Funding

10. This application to the Community Investment Fund was deferred at the 
Executive Member for Recreation and Heritage Decision Day on 14 January 
2019 and then again on 7 May 2019.

11. Pilands Wood Community Association is a medium sized community 
association in Bursledon that serves an area of significant multiple 
deprivation, ranked in the top 5% in Hampshire and the top 20% in England. It 
offers guidance, support and advocacy to approximately 2,000 people a year, 
addressing local needs and delivering activities that include intergenerational 
bingo, a youth group, low cost parent and toddler group, charity shop and job 
club.

12. At the time of application, the organisation was not in compliance with the 
Charity Commission annual returns submission schedule. The organisation’s 
local Council for Voluntary Service, One Community, and Eastleigh Borough 
Council have been supporting it in bringing its compliance up to date and 
strengthening its management at the Council’s request.

13. The organisation has secured £12,500 from Eastleigh Borough Council and 
£350 from Bursledon Parish Council. It has annual costs of £56,710 and 
expects to generate £34,500 from room hire and other activity.

Page 4



14. As Pilands Wood Community Association has been making good progress 
over the last few weeks and continues to engage with One Community to 
strengthen its management and governance, and in light of the significant 
community benefit the organisation provides to vulnerable groups, it is 
recommended the Executive Member for Recreation and Heritage approves 
an award of £9,000 for 2019/20.

Finance

15. The total draft grants budget for 2019/20 for the portfolio of the Executive 
Member for Recreation and Heritage is £938,000, made up of £813,000 
revenue funding and £125,000 capital funding. Of this, £453,000 was 
awarded to cultural and community organisations at the Executive Member’s 
Decision Day on 14 January 2019, leaving £485,000 for the Recreation and 
Heritage Community Fund.

16. Budget Update:

Recreation and Heritage Community Fund budget 2019/20  £485,000
Transferred from Community Buildings Capital Fund 
2018/19 (Decision Day 25 February 2019)

£98,809

Previously awarded (Decision Day 25 February 2019) £12,959
Previously awarded (Decision Day 7 May 2019) £86,860
Recommendations for approval in this report £91,684
Remainder available
(if all recommendations in this report are approved)

£392,306

Other Key Issues

17. Legal Implications: The Council has wide powers under Section 19 Local 
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 to provide recreational 
facilities and to contribute by way of a grant or loan towards the expenses 
incurred by voluntary bodies in providing such facilities and activities.

Page 5



REQUIRED CORPORATE AND LEGAL INFORMATION:

Links to the Strategic Plan

Hampshire maintains strong and sustainable economic
growth and prosperity:

no

People in Hampshire live safe, healthy and independent
lives:

yes

People in Hampshire enjoy a rich and diverse 
environment:

yes

People in Hampshire enjoy being part of strong, 
inclusive communities:

yes

Other Significant Links
Links to previous Member decisions:
Title Date
Grant Funding for Culture and Community Organisations in 
Hampshire

14 January 2019

Grant Funding for Culture and Community Organisations in 
Hampshire
Grant Funding for Culture and Community Organisations in 
Hampshire

25 February 2019

7 May 2019

Direct links to specific legislation or Government Directives 
Title Date

Section 100 D - Local Government Act 1972 - background documents

The following documents discuss facts or matters on which this report, or an 
important part of it, is based and have been relied upon to a material extent in 
the preparation of this report. (NB: the list excludes published works and any 
documents which disclose exempt or confidential information as defined in 
the Act.)

Document Location
None

Page 6



EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESSMENT:

1. Equality Duty
The County Council has a duty under Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 
(‘the Act’) to have due regard in the exercise of its functions to the need to:
- Eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation and any other 

conduct prohibited by or under the Act with regard to the protected 
characteristics as set out in section 4 of the Act (age, disability, gender 
reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, 
race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation);

- Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic within section 149(7) of the Act (age, disability, 
gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex 
and sexual orientation) and those who do not share it;

- Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic within section 149(7) of the Act (see above) and persons who 
do not share it. 

Due regard in this context involves having due regard in particular to:
- The need to remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by persons 

sharing a relevant protected characteristic that are connected to that 
characteristic;

- Take steps to meet the needs of persons sharing a relevant protected 
characteristic that are different from the needs of persons who do not share 
it;

- Encourage persons sharing a relevant protected characteristic to 
participate in public life or in any other activity in which participation by such 
persons is disproportionally low.

2. Equalities Impact Assessment:
A high level Equalities Impact Assessment has been undertaken. The grants are 
intended to have a positive impact and advance equality.

Page 7



Appendix 1

Criteria for Recreation and Heritage Community Fund

What is Funded? 

The priority of the scheme is to fund projects which: 
 Provide community benefit and help local communities thrive 
 Help local organisations become financially self-supporting and not reliant 

on public sector funding 

In addition, small one-off grants from £1,000 to £3,000 will also be awarded to 
help pump-prime community events and activities. 

The programme is not designed to be overly prescriptive. 

Applicants must support the priorities and outcomes of Hampshire County 
Council’s Serving Hampshire - Strategic Plan for 2017-2021. It forms the 
cornerstone of all strategies and plans across departments and service areas, and 
features four key aims:

 Hampshire maintains strong and sustainable economic growth and 
prosperity

 People in Hampshire live safe, healthy and independent lives
 People in Hampshire enjoy a rich and diverse environment
 People in Hampshire enjoy being part of strong, inclusive communities

What is not Funded? 

The following organisations are not funded under this scheme: 
 Individuals 
 Services provided solely within the unitary authority areas of Portsmouth 

City Council and/or Southampton City Council 
 Other local authorities, including District, Parish and Town Councils 
 Commercial/Profit-Making organisations
 Schools, including pre-schools and colleges 

The following projects are not funded under this scheme: 
 The purchase of land. 
 Capital works that have already been carried out. We cannot 

retrospectively fund projects; grants are awarded for works to be carried 
out in the future. 

 Ongoing staff costs. We may fund a fixed-term member of staff or 
consultant to carry out a time-limited piece of work. 

 Fund-raising activities.
 Projects which meet the aims of other Hampshire County Council grant 

schemes.  Where relevant, applications may be transferred to more 
appropriate schemes.

Page 8

https://www.hants.gov.uk/aboutthecouncil/strategiesplansandpolicies/corporatestrategy


Appendix 1

Organisations will not be awarded more than one grant per financial year and 
previously funded projects must be completed before a new application is made. 

Grant Criteria and Eligibility 

Organisations must be properly constituted with clear and effective local 
governance and management structures. Organisations will not normally be 
eligible for grants where they hold unallocated reserves in excess of one year’s 
running costs. Where it is judged that unallocated reserves are unreasonably in 
excess of what is required or not allocated for legitimate purposes, those 
organisations may receive a reduced grant. All charitable organisations are 
expected to have an agreed reserves policy that addresses their financial risk. 

Projects should be well developed with match-funding secured. Organisations 
should have also applied to local District or Parish Councils where local funding 
opportunities exist. 

Hampshire County Council will normally fund up to a maximum grant of £100,000. 
Please contact CCBS Grants to discuss any proposals in excess of this. 

Match funding or clear evidence of seeking match funding is highly desirable 
although not essential. 

We would expect any applications for new buildings or large extensions to show 
consideration has been given to the development of a Changing Place even if it is 
not included in the final project. 

All applicants will be expected to have obtained permission from the landlord to 
undertake the capital work. If required applicants will also be expected to have 
obtained (or engaged in the process of) planning permission and/or listed 
buildings consent (if appropriate) to carry out the works. 

Where appropriate, depending on the grant sum requested, the organisation will 
be expected to submit supporting documentation. 

Page 9

http://www.changing-places.org/


Appendix 2

Recreation and Heritage Community Fund 2019/20
Application Assessment Summary

Each grant application has been assessed against the fund criteria (Appendix 1) using a standard template.

Organisation

(District / 
Division)

Project Title

(Project Costs)

Proposal Amount 
Requested

Amount 
Recommended 

1st 
Sandleheath 
Sea Scouts

(New Forest / 
Lyndhurst & 
Fordingbridge)

Canoes

(£2,500)

The organisation seeks funding towards the purchase of smaller canoes and paddles to 
open activities up to younger and smaller members of the group. Sandleheath Sea 
Scouts support a high number of young people. It receives Sport England funding to 
deliver its activities and has a proven track record of engaging the community and 
delivering high quality activities. The organisation has not sought funding from other 
sources, including local council/s and has over one year’s running costs in reserves. 
97 Hampshire residents are expected to benefit.
The organisation has committed £500 of its own funds to the project.
Councillor Heron fully supports the application.
It is recommended the application is partially supported and awarded £1,000, 
reflecting free reserves over one year's running costs, on condition the 
organisation develops a Reserves Policy to address the need to build sufficient 
funds to meet equipment replacement costs.

£2,000 £1,000

2timetheatre

(Winchester/ 
Winchester 
Eastgate)

Tilly and the 
Spitfires

(£2,192)

The organisation seeks funding towards the production of a new play about a Hampshire 
Heroine, Tilly Shilling, who was an engineer who tried to save the Spitfire. The funding 
will pay for rehearsal space, venue costs, director fee, actors fee, lighting and set and 
costume hire. It will be performed twice in Winchester as part of the Heritage Open Days 
event in September 2019. The organisation has a good history of delivering projects with 
three play scripts and seven original dramas.
200 Hampshire residents are expected to benefit.
The organisation expects to generate £100 from box office sales and £250 from in-kind 
donations of rehearsal space and costume use.
Councillor Hiscock supports the application.
Note: The organisation was awarded £500 County Councillor Devolved Grants in 
2019/20 (decision 24/06/2019.)
It is recommended 2timetheatre is awarded £1,342.

£1,342 £1,342

P
age 10



Appendix 2

Organisation

(District / 
Division)

Project Title

(Project Costs)

Proposal Amount 
Requested

Amount 
Recommended 

Andover Mind

(Test Valley / 
Andover 
South)

Ugly Duckling

(£8,805)

The organisation seeks funding towards development of a sales website and training in 
additional renovation techniques to support Ugly Duckling, a furniture recycling, repair 
and renovation service which offers work experience and volunteering opportunities. The 
majority of the project costs is for the development of a new website with only £800 of 
project costs being training in new techniques to increase the skills of participants. No 
application has been submitted to the organisation's local council/s.
70 Hampshire residents are expected to benefit. The organisation has committed £800 of 
its own funds to the project and has secured £200 from the Fitton Trust.
Councillor Boiles was invited to comment.
As the proposal does not meet the scheme's key aims, it is recommended the 
application is not supported.

£7,805 £0

Easton Village 
Hall & 
Recreation 
Ground

(Winchester / 
Itchen Valley)

Easton Village 
Hall Extension 
Project 

(£50,000)

The organisation seeks funding towards a single-storey extension to provide additional 
storage/meeting room space. The application is for phases 2 and 3 of the project: phase 
1 (building the foundations) has already been completed in order to preserve planning 
permission. The organisation delivers a fairly small community programme with 16 
regular bookings per week, plus social activities. 
100 Hampshire residents are expected to benefit.
The organisation has committed £17,000 of its own funds to the project and hopes to 
raise a further £8,000. No application has been submitted to any other sources of 
funding, including to the organisation’s local council/s.
Councillor Porter supports the application.
It is recommended that the application is deferred to allow the organisation time to 
explore and apply for other funding sources.

£25,000 Defer

Ford Transition

(Eastleigh / 
Chandler’s 
Ford)

Made for 
Making

(£3,150)

The organisation seeks funding to explore the practical creativity of people who worked in 
manufacturing jobs in Eastleigh area (e.g. Ford, Pirelli), through activities and an 
exhibition display. It will create a small programme of reminiscence for elders, arts 
activities for children and a ‘Made for Making’ display to accompany the Ford Transition 
exhibition at Eastleigh Museum.
25 Hampshire residents are expected to benefit.
The organisation has committed £250 of its own funds to the project. It has secured £850 
from Radian Housing Association and £600 from One Community / Eastleigh Museum.
Councillor Clarke supports the application.
It is recommended Ford Transition is awarded £1,450.

£1,450 £1,450

P
age 11



Appendix 2

Organisation

(District / 
Division)

Project Title

(Project Costs)

Proposal Amount 
Requested

Amount 
Recommended 

Friends of 
Leesland Park

(Gosport / 
Leesland & 
Town)

Outdoor Gym

(£16,430)

The organisation seeks funding towards the purchase and installation of fitness 
equipment in the park that would create a permanent, easily accessible and free to use 
outdoor gym facility. Park spaces can be at risk of attracting anti-social behaviour while 
outdoor gym spaces engage high numbers of the community. There has been a history 
of anti-social behaviour at this park which the project aims to address. The organisation 
has a strong relationship with the community and has gained local support linked to the 
fundraising efforts. 
The organisation has committed £1,000 of its own funds to the project. It has secured 
£3,400 from County Councillor Devolved Grants, £1,500 from Hampshire Playing Fields 
Association and £2,800 from major supermarket and local donations. 
Councillors Carter and Edgar were invited to comment. Councillor Carter is supportive of 
the project in principle.
Note: The organisation was awarded £2000 County Councillor Devolved Grants in 
2018/19 (decision 05/03/2019.)
It is recommended Friends of Leesland Park is awarded up to 47% of capital 
project costs to a maximum of £7,700.

£7,700 £7,700

Headway 
Portsmouth 
and South East 
Hampshire

(Gosport / 
Bridgemary)

Gosport 
Outreach 
Activities 
Service

(£3,982)

The organisation seeks funding towards the delivery of inclusive sports and recreational 
activities in Gosport for brain injured adults who cannot access the existing provision in 
Portsmouth. It will include weekly sports sessions facilitated by skilled personnel. The 
project idea is well developed and thought through. Physical activity can improve 
recovery in some cases for brain injury patients. The organisation supports a high 
number of local people. 
40 Hampshire residents are expected to benefit.
The organisation expects to generate £1,040 from the sale of refreshments.
Councillor Philpott was invited to comment.
It is recommended Headway Portsmouth and South East Hampshire is awarded 
£2,942 as a one-off as the organisation aims to become self-sufficient in the future.

£2,942 £2,942

Joyful Jams 
CIC

(Countywide)

JAMS in 
Hospitals

(£15,000)

The organisation seeks funding towards an in-house participatory arts and sensory 
engagement programme for dementia nurses and carers in Hampshire Trust Hospitals.  
This programme will work with staff to develop their skills and ability to use arts as a way 
of communicating better with patients, encouraging behaviour change and to nurture a 
trusting and supportive environment. Alongside the training there will be a mentoring 
programme and new activity resources for further engagement. Officers from Adults 

£3,000 £1,500

P
age 12



Appendix 2

Organisation

(District / 
Division)

Project Title

(Project Costs)

Proposal Amount 
Requested

Amount 
Recommended 

Joyful Jams 
CIC, cont.

Heath and Care were invited to comment and felt the project should also be funded by 
Hampshire Trust Hospitals.
The organisation has applied for £10,000 from National Lottery Community Fund 
(expected outcome 28/05/2019) and £2,000 from Peoples Postcode Lottery (expected 
outcome 15/10/2019).
It is recommended the application is partially supported to the value of £1,500, on 
the condition that match funding is sought from Hampshire Trust Hospitals. 

Marchwood 
Scout and 
Guide Building 
Management 
Committee

(New Forest / 
Totton South 
and 
Marchwood)

Marchwood 
Scout and 
Guide 
Community 
Build

(£100,150)

The organisation seeks funding for phase two of a new build (internal fit out and 
landscaping) to replace a demolished scout hut and to increase facilities in a growing 
community (an additional 1000 homes, equivalent to 40% increase in village, are 
anticipated in New Forest Plan).  
40 Hampshire residents are expected to benefit.
The organisation has committed £10,000 of its own funds to the project. It has secured 
£10,000 from Marchwood Parish Council, £10,000 from Bernard Sunley Trust, £20,000 
from Dibden Allotments, £150 from Lymington Masons and £20,000 from Hampshire 
West Girlguiding. The organisation also expects to generate £2,000 from continued 
fundraising and will benefit from £3,000 in-kind support from volunteers.
Councillor Harrison supports the application.
It is recommended Marchwood Scout and Guide Building Management Committee 
is awarded up to 20% of capital project costs to a maximum of £20,000 on 
condition the organisation develops a Reserves Policy.

£20,000 £20,000

Milton Heritage 
Society

(New Forest / 
New Milton)

No.1 New 
Milton

(£52,000)

The organisation seeks funding towards the conversion of the derelict Station Masters 
House into a heritage centre. There is currently no local place for historical material to be 
displayed in the town. There will be several rooms displaying archives, there will be a 
study space and learning centre, which will have digital resources. This space will be for 
the local community to learn about the local heritage and the funding will pay for a 
scanner, laptop and suitable cabinet. This funding does not make the organisation 
financially self-supporting. It can continue with the development without this funding due 
to other funding already achieved. The organisation has secured £5,000 from Hampshire 
Archives Trust, £20,000 from New Milton Town Council (matched funding), £4,000 from 
New Forest National Park Authority, £3,690 from various donations.
Councillor Kendall supports the application.
As the project will go ahead whether this funding is secured or not and lacks 
community focus, it is recommended the application is not supported.

£2,510 £0

P
age 13



Appendix 2

Organisation

(District / 
Division)

Project Title

(Project Costs)

Proposal Amount 
Requested

Amount 
Recommended 

RicNic

(Winchester / 
Winchester 
Eastgate)

RicNic 
Hampshire 
2019 - 15th 
Anniversary

(£16,800)

The project will involve young people taking on every role within a theatre production 
resulting in a performance in Winchester. This is not a new project and has been done 
before for many years - it has been received well in the past and young people appear to 
get a lot from it. However, it is not clear how young people are engaged and it appears 
the same young people attend as previous years and who may be able to pay for 
participating. Other sources of funding outside the County Council have not been 
approached.
1060 Hampshire residents are expected to benefit.
The organisation has committed £2,500 of its own funds to the project. It has secured 
£500 from an HCC County Councillor Grant and £300 from friends of RicNic. It expects to 
generate £11,500 from box office sales and fundraising.
Councillor Hiscock was invited to comment.
Note: The organisation was awarded £500 County Councillor Devolved Grants in 
2018/19 (decision 04/02/2019)
As the project is not new or developmental in nature and therefore does not qualify 
for pump-priming funding, and as no other sources of funding outside the County 
Council have been approached, it is recommended the application is not 
supported.

£1,000 £0

The Vine 
Centre

(Rushmoor / 
Aldershot 
North)

Our Time 
(Rushmoor 
Time Bank)

(£24,897)

The organisation seeks funding to establish and manage a Time Bank. The majority of 
the project costs (£16,640) are for a coordinator role, plus approx. £3,000 contribution to 
the organisation's core costs. These are not eligible under the scheme criteria.
1,000 Hampshire residents are expected to benefit.
The organisation has secured £280 from Time Bank UK and will benefit from £2,304 in-
kind support in volunteer time.
Councillor Choudhary would like the Vine Centre to receive a grant.
As the proposal does not meet scheme criteria, it is recommended it is not 
supported.

£22,313 £0

The 
Winchester 
Pavilion 
Project

The 
Winchester 
Pavilion 
Project

(£600,000)

The organisation, a Charitable Incorporated Organisation, has been established to 
support the development of an improved facility as Winchester City Council has funds to 
replace the current dilapidated cricket pavilion on a like for like basis only, whereas this 
project would provide an improved facility for multi-sport and community use. The new 
facility will be managed by Winchester City Council on behalf of the various groups which 
will use it to support multi-sport and multi-organisational use. Good levels of funding have 

£30,000 £30,000

P
age 14



Appendix 2

Organisation

(District / 
Division)

Project Title

(Project Costs)

Proposal Amount 
Requested

Amount 
Recommended 

The 
Winchester 
Pavilion 
Project, cont.

(Winchester / 
Winchester 
Downlands)

already been secured, indicating the project is well developed and meets priorities e.g. 
for Sport England.
The organisation has secured £300,000 from Winchester City Council, £10,000 from 
Bernard Sunley Foundation, £1,000 from Hampshire Playing Fields Association, £20,000 
Linbury Trust and £50,000 from Sport England. It has applied for £20,000 from Linbury 
Trust match-funding (expected outcome 01/09/2019) and expects to generate 
£22,393.17 from donations and fundraising events.
Councillor Warwick supports the application.
Note: In 2018/19 The organisation submitted four County Councillor applications of which 
three were supported to a value of £1500. In 2019/20 it submitted a further seven 
applications of which two have been supported to the value of £1,000 and two are 
awaiting decision.
It is recommended The Winchester Pavilion Project is awarded up to 5% of capital 
project costs, to a maximum of £30,000.

Waltham 
Chase Village 
Hall

(Winchester / 
Meon Valley)

Toilet 
Refurbishment

(£26,000)

The organisation seeks funding to upgrade the current disabled, ladies and gentlemen’s 
toilet facilities within the forty-year-old hall, making the most of new technology (motion 
sensors, LED lights, etc.) to reduce running costs. The hall is used term-time daily by a 
pre-school (contributing £2,000 to the project), and daily as a community cafe, otherwise 
a small community programme with six regular weekly activities and seven regular 
monthly activities as set out in the business plan.
3,000 Hampshire residents are expected to benefit.
The organisation has committed £5,000 of its own funds to the project and has 
secured £5,000 from Shedfield Parish Council and £2,000 from Waltham Chase Pre-
School. It has applied for £1,000 from its local County Councillor (awaiting outcome).
Councillor Huxstep fully supports the application.
Note: The organisation has previously been awarded Community Building Capital Fund 
awards of £6,500 (21/03/2017) towards electrics and heating and awarded £21,000 
(20/01/2014) towards roof extension.
It is recommended the organisation is awarded up to 50% of capital project costs 
to a maximum of £13,000.

£13,000 £13,000

Worthy 
Festival

The Worthys 
Festival

(£8,674)

The organisation seeks funding to support a biennial week-long event to be held in 
September 2019. The Worthys Festival is a celebration of life in the Worthys (Kings 
Worthy, Abbots Worthy and Headbourne Worthy). It is non-profit making, and most 
events are free to all. It includes a music festival with performance opportunities for local 

£1,000 £1,000

P
age 15



Appendix 2

Organisation

(District / 
Division)

Project Title

(Project Costs)

Proposal Amount 
Requested

Amount 
Recommended 

Worthy 
Festival, cont.

(Winchester / 
Itchen Valley)

groups and displays from local groups and services to encourage participation, etc. The 
Worthys have had a significant amount of new housing development over the last few 
years most notably Kings Barton with a broad range of social demographics. The festival 
committee also invites representation from Worthy Down (MOD establishment) and is 
aiming to foster a positive relationship with the community at Worthy Down.
3000 Hampshire residents are expected to benefit.
The organisation has committed £1,500 of its own funds to the project and has secured 
£500 from Winchester City Council, £900 from Cllr Porter and £1,000 from King's Worthy 
Parish Council. The organisation also expects to generate £3,000 from local business 
advertising. 
Councillor Porter supports the application.
Note: The organisation has previously been awarded £800 for a Culture and Community 
Activity Grant (decision 16/07/2015) for Worthys Festival 2015.
It is recommended the application is awarded to the amount requested. 

Y services for 
young people

(Fareham and 
Gosport 
Districts)

Play Rangers 
community 
sessions

(£3,850)

The organisation seeks funding to provide free 2-hour play sessions to children and 
families in the Fareham and Gosport districts during school holidays in various 
community locations, including parks and open community spaces. The organisation has 
a good track record of engaging with vulnerable people and delivering similar activity.
70 Hampshire residents are expected to benefit.
The organisation has committed £500 of its own funds to the project and is awaiting 
outcome for £150 from Fareham Borough Council. It will benefit from £450 of in-kind 
support in the of use of open spaces and donated goods.   
County Councillors for Fareham and Gosport Districts were invited to comment. 
Councillors Birkett, Burgess, Carter, Evans, Hayre and Price support the application.
Note: The organisation was awarded £2,070 Culture and Community Activity Grants 
2018/19 (decision day 09/07/2018) and also received awards in 2017/18 and 2016/17 for 
similar activity.
It is a recommended the application is supported to the amount requested. 
 However, the organisation should note that this is award is for pump priming 
activity and, having funded this activity for four years now, similar applications in 
future will not be awarded a grant.  

£2,750 £2,750

TOTAL £143,812 £82,684

P
age 16


	Agenda
	1 Grant Funding to Culture and Community Organisations in Hampshire 2019/20

